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The Sweetapple Family 

Cookery Book of 1796 and 

Alan Crockerôs illustrated booklet 

on the cookery book , see page 7. 

Each pair of leaves the Cookery Book  

has the watermark shown below,  

which is part of a representation of the  

óLion of the Seven Provinces of the Netherlandsô, 

see right. 
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Reports & Notices 
Details of meetings are reported in good faith, but information may  

become out of date. Please check details before attending.  

SIHG Visits, Details & Updates at www.sihg.org.uk 
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Other Industrial Archaeology Organizations 
Amberley Museum & Heritage Centre: by Amberley Railway Station on the B2139; www.amberleymuseum.co.uk. 
Brooklands: Brooklands Road, Weybridge, Surrey KT13 0QN. 

Bursledon Brickworks: Coal Park Lane, Swanwick, Southampton SO31 7GW. 

Chatham Historic Dockyard: Chatham, Kent ME4 4TZ; www.thedockyard.co.uk. 
Crofton Beam Engines : Crofton Pumping Station, Crofton, Marlborough, Wilts SN8 3DW; www.croftonbeamengines.org. 

Crossness Pumping Station : The Old Works, Crossness STW, Belvedere Road, Abbey Wood, London SE2 9AQ; www.crossness.org.uk. 
Croydon Natural History & Scientific Society: United Reformed Church Hall, Addiscombe Grove, East Croydon. 
Cuffley Industrial Heritage Society: Northaw Village Hall, 5 Northaw Road West, Northaw EN6 4NW, www.cihs.org.uk. 
Didcot Railway Centre: Didcot Parkway railway station, Didcot, Oxfordshire OX11 7NJ. 
Docklands History Group: Museum in Docklands, No 1 Warehouse, West India Quay, Hertsmere Rd, London E14 4AL; www.docklandshistorygroup.org.uk. 
Enfield Archaeological Society: Jubilee Hall, Parsonage Lane, Enfield; www.enfarchsoc.org. 
Greenwich Industrial History Society: The Old Bakehouse, rear of Age Exchange Centre, 11 Blackheath Village, London SE3.  
Guildford Museum: Castle Arch, Guildford, Surrey GU1 3SX, museum@guildford.gov.uk. 
Hampshire Industrial Archaeology Society: Underhill Centre, St. John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF. 

Jill Windmill: (TQ 303134) Clayton, Sussex; from the A23 at Pyecombe take the A273 north. 
Kempton Great Engines: Feltham Hill Road, Hanworth, Middx TW13 6XH (off elevated section of A316), www.kemptonsteam.org. 
Kew Bridge Steam Museum: Green Dragon Lane, Brentford, Middlsex TW8 0EN, www.kbsm.org. 
Knowledge of the City: St Bride Institute, Bride Lane, off Fleet Street, London EC4Y 8EQ. 

London & Middlesex Archaeological Society :Museum of London (Terrace Room), London Wall, London EC2Y 5HN; www.lamas.org.uk. 
London (Cobham) Bus Museum: London Bus Preservation Trust, (now at Brooklands), www.lbpt.org. 

London Canal Museum: 12/13 New Wharf Road, London N1 9RT, www.canalmuseum.org.uk. 
London Model Engineering Exhibition: Alexandra Palace, London N22 7AY, www.londonmodelengineering.co.uk. 

London Transport Museum Depot: 2 Museum Way, 118-120 Gunnersbury Lane, London W3 9BQ, www.ltmuseum.co.uk. 
London Underground Railway Society: Upper Room, All Souls Clubhouse, 141 Cleveland Street, London W1T 6QG; www.lurs.org.uk. 
Lowfield Heath Windmill: Russ Hill, Charlwood, RH6 0EL (TQ 234 407). 
Mapledurham Watermill: Mapledurham, Reading, RG4 7TR. 
Markfield Beam Engine and Museum: Markfield Road, South Tottenham, London N15 4RB, info@mbeam.org, www.mbeam.org. 
Michelham Priory: Upper Dicker, near Hailsham, East Sussex BN27 3QS; adminmich@sussexpast.co.uk. 
National Trust: www.nationaltrust.org.uk. 

Newcomen Society London: Fellowsô Room, Science Museum, Exhibition Road, London SW7 2DD. 

Newcomen Society Portsmouth: Room 0.27, Portland Building, University of Portsmouth, St James Street off Queen Street, Portsea. 

Railway & Canal Historical Society: The Rugby Tavern, Rugby Street, London WC1, www.rchs.org.uk.  

Rural Life CentreΥ Old Kiln Museum, Reeds Road, Tilford, Farnham, Surrey, GU10 2DL. 

Saddlescombe: (TQ273115); Signposted 2 miles N of A27 Brighton ring road & 1 mile S of A281. 
Southwark & Lambeth Archaeological Society: Housing Co-op Hall, 106 The Cut. 

Twyford Waterworks: Hazeley Road, Twyford, Hampshire SO21 1QA, www.twyfordwaterworks.co.uk. 
Victorian Society: Art Workersô Guild, 6 Queen Square, London WC1, www.victoriansociety.org.uk. 
Watercress Line (Mid Hants Railway): Station Road Alresford SO24 9JG or Station Road Alton GU34 2PZ. 
Weald & Downland Open Air Museum, Singleton: Chichester, West Sussex, PO18 0EU. 

Windmill Hill Windmill: TQ 648122, on A271 between Herstmonceux & Boreham Street. 

http://www.ltmuseum.co.uk/whats-on/museum-depot/guided-tours
http://www.victoriansociety.org.uk


March 2012 3 Newsletter 186 

Surrey Industrial History Group Officers 

Chairman & Lectures Organiser: Robert Bryson, meetings@sihg.org.uk 

Secretary: Alan Thomas, info@sihg.org.uk 

Treasurer: Anne Lea, treasurer@sihg.org.uk 

Membership Secretary: Pam Taylor, membership@sihg.org.uk 

Newsletter Editor: Jan Spencer, news@sihg.org.uk 

Published by the Surrey Industrial History Group and printed by 

YesPrint 3 Leafy Oak Workshops Cobbetts Lane Yateley GU17 9LW 

É SIHG 2012 ISSN 1355-8188 

SIHG is a group of the Surrey Archaeological Society,  

Registered Charity No 272098,  Castle Arch Guildford Surrey GU1 3SX 

Group President: Prof AG Crocker FSA 

The deadline for submitting copy for the next Newsletter is 

10 May 2012. 

Submissions are accepted in typescript, on a disc, or by email to news@sihg.org.uk.  
Anything related to IA will be considered. Priority will be given to Surrey-based or topical articles. 

Contributions will be published as soon as space is available. 

Readers are advised that the views of contributors are not necessarily the views of SIHG. 

Website: www.sihg.org.uk 

South East Regional Industrial Archaeology Conference 

SERIAC 2012 

Saturday 28 April 2012 St Bartholomewôs School, Newbury 

Organized by Berkshire Industrial Archaeology Group, www.biag.org.uk. Application form available on our website. 

SIHG Membership Renewal for 2012-13 is now due 

The SIHG membership database has been merged with the Surrey Archaeological Society database. 

Cheques payable to óSurrey Archaeological Societyô please, to Castle Arch, Guildford GU1 3SX 

Membership Form available online. You may also pay by Standing Order. 

SIHG Newsletter No 186 March 2012 

DIARY 

The 37th series of SIHG Industrial Archaeology Lectures 
will start on Tuesday 2 October 2012, 1930 - 2130, University of Surrey (Lecture Theatre F) (Oct & Nov only) 
Enquiries to programme co-ordinator, Bob Bryson, meetings@sihg.org.uk. Maps at www.sihg.org.uk 

Free parking is available in the evening on the main campus car park. 

Single lectures at Ã5, payable on the night, are open to all. 

* Programme / Application Form available online* discount for prompt return! * 

* New, almost step-free, venue after November * 

The Autumn 2012 Thursday Morning Lecture Series at Leatherhead 
starts on 4 October 2012. 

Enquiries to Bob Bryson, meetings@sihg.org.uk. 

As seating is strictly limited, enrolment is for the whole course only; casual attendance is not possible. 

A few places are still available! 

Saturday 7 July 2012 
 

Surrey Industrial History Group AGM  & Conservation Award 2012 
 

at the Rural Life Centre, Tilford; Details in May Newsletter 
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I have often wondered about the name Shannon Corner. 

It appears as the heading on a gantry sign on the A3 as 

the road becomes a flyover on the Kingston bypass, in 

the area of South West London and Surrey. 

Shannon Corner is an area of land in the London Bor-
ough of Merton, although it is very close to New 

Malden, Surrey. Up until 1965 Merton was in Surrey. 

The name is thought to derive from The Shannon Type-

writer Company, which operated there from the late 

1920s1. During that time, outer London became an im-

portant location for the rise of the ñnew industriesò2. 

ñIn Merton and Morden a large number of industries 

were established in three industrial estates, in order to 

preserve other amenities of the area. Along the Kingston 

bypass, at Shannon Corner is the well-known firm of 

Shannon Ltdò3.  

The Kingston bypass was constructed in 1927 and it 

offered excellent transport connections for these indus-

tries4. The area developed rapidly as the building re-
straints of the 1935 Ribbon Development Act were not 

yet in force. 

Kellyôs Directory of Surrey 1930 lists in the Kingston 

section: Shannon Ltd. Office Equipment, Burlington 

Road5. The Ordnance Survey map of 1936 shows the 

site of an office equipment factory in Burlington Road 

and the name Shannon Corner at the junction of Burling-

ton Road and Beverley Way6; see left. 

Kellyôs Directory of Surrey 1938 lists in the Malden and 

Coombe section: Shannon Ltd, Shannon Corner, Bur-

lington Road, New Malden7. 

The 1955 Post Office local telephone directory lists 

Shannon Ltd. The Files Visible Systems (Factory) Shan-

non Corner, New Malden and also Shannon Systems 

(The Shannon Ltd Filing), Shannon Corner, New 

Malden. Tel Malden 32628. 

The 1961 Post Office London Directory9 lists Shannon 

Ltd. Office equipment and supplier of visible records, 

visible and suspended and lateral filing systems, cabi-

nets, wall-charts, card index systems, transfer supplier, 

846 functional office furniture, photocopying equipment 

and Administration. Shannon Corner, New Malden, Sur-

rey. 

The 1969 Post Office Directory10 lists. Shannon Ltd. 

Headquarters at 15/19 Kingsway, London. With facto-

ries at New Malden and Bromborough, Cheshire. 

Graces guide11, which records British Companies at 

trade exhibitions, lists Shannon at 13/16 Ropemaker 

 

Shannon Corner & Shannon Limited: A Surrey Factory Site (part 1) by Norma Cox 

Street, London.EC2. 

Head Office. 57/40 

Victoria Street, Lon-

don. SW1. At 29 

Queen Victoria 
Street. London. EC4 

showroom 1922. 

Also Shannon of 

Shannon Corner, 

New Malden, Sur-

rey. Telephone 

Malden 3262. Cable: 

Shannon London. 

Also 15-19 King-

sway, London. The 

company was found-

ed in 1883. In 1899 
the company regis-

tered on 11 April 

and is a second re-

construction of 

Shannon File Com-

pany. The Shannon 

File Company ex-

hibited at the British 

Industries Fairs of 

1922, 1947, and 

196111. 

There is an idealised 

picture of an Art 

Deco building on 

one of the Shannon 

(Continued on page 5) 
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What do elephants and stilt walkers have in common? 

The answer is that pictures of both were shown during 

this talk. The elephants were leaving Farnham station 

having travelled there by train as part of the circus - in 

the days before it travelled by road.  

Less exotic were pictures of rural life from the mid 19th 

to mid 20th century. Many aspects were covered starting 

with the houses and small cottages providing accommo-

dation to the population. The Dame schools that provid-

ed an education to the poorer children and the various 

occupations of their elders were also represented. The 

hundred or so years covered by the photographs saw a 

massive change in the lives of the rural population. 

Travelling by foot, horse or carriage was replaced by the 

train, the bicycle and the motorcar or van. Some changes 

happened surprisingly late and quickly. Hop-pickers, 

shown travelling and living in a horse drawn caravan in 
1950, were living by the end of the decade in modern 

caravans drawn by motorcars. 

Other occupations represented were shepherds, shearing 

the sheep with spring shears, potato digging with wood-

en spades and harvesting with a three horse reaper and 

binder, precursor of the combine harvester. Early ver-

sions of the combine created great interest at the time 

although they still required nearly as many men to oper-

ate as the old methods of harvesting. Woodland workers 
such as lumberjacks, besom or hurdle makers can still be 

seen today at special events at the Rural Life Centre, but 

for those in the photographs it was a real way of life.  

In the 19th century villages were self sufficient units 

with there own food production, blacksmith, wheel-

wright, some even had brickworks or potteries. A small 

brickworks might have as many as 40 staff. Farnham 

had a pottery that operated until the 1950s, specialising 

in green glazed wear and terracotta. Glazed terracotta 

tiles found their way to Rangoon, surplus stock now 

roofs the public convenience at the pottery! The village 

shop would provide everything a family required. The 

local dairyman travelled around the streets, selling milk 
dispensed directly into the householderôs own jug. The 

local miller was a powerful man, as everyone required 

his services to be able to make their bread. Later on 

these trades were joined by electricians and engineers as 

technology developed beyond the skills of the local 

blacksmith etc. A most unusual workshop was in Churt 

where ladies made costumes for a London nightclub! 

Leisure was simpler as well; walks, the village fair, skat-

ing on a frozen pond, cricket on the green and the vil-

lage pub. All of these aspects of life were shown in a 

fascinating array of photographs, some originally taken 

using 25cm wide glass plates. 

Life has changed a great deal in the last century and a 

half. Machines replaced manpower in the country. Many 

people moved to the town by choice or because there 

was no longer sufficient work for them. Village fairs, 

cricket and the village pub have survived but people 

today look elsewhere for most of their entertainments. 

Walking is now popular as a leisure activity, no longer 

through necessity. Holidays have changed as well. The 

charabanc outing or a week on the coast is replaced by 
foreign travel. Some people took their servants with 

them on holiday, not an option these days. The photo-

graphs at the talk reminded us all of an era past, and to 

some degree lamented. 

And the stilt walkers?  

Half of a two man team stringing the wires of a hop gar-

den.     ά 

SIHG Lecture 10 January 2012 

The Lost Countryside: Images of Rural Life  

by Chris Shepheard, Director Rural Life Centre report by Anne Lea 

Limited Brochures14. The picture carries the key adver-

tising words Wood, Steel, Colour and Functional Furni-

ture. It is a bold picture with strong advertising appeal; 

see previous page. 

Shannoblic tabs were angled for quick sighting; see previous 

page.. 
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(Continued from page 4) 
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Part 2 will be in the May Newsletter.     ά 
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There is a detailed review of the 2010 Cork Conference 

which was reported in our November 2011 Newsletter. 

The Heritage Lottery Fundôs support for Industrial Heritage 
is reviewed by Tony Crosby. Twenty former industrial sites 

have now been removed from the óat riskô register follow-
ing HLF funding. These include the engine winding house 

and headstocks at Bestwood Colliery, Nottinghamshire, 
which have been restored and interpreted; and the Grade II* 

Derby Roundhouse, once derelict but now refurbished and 
part of Derby College. Also funded recently was interpreta-

tion of the Grade II listed and Scheduled Wheal Peevor 
engine houses in Cornwall; the conservation of the remains 

of the Scheduled sixteenth century Oare Gunpowder Works 
in Kent; and the Grade II Gayle Mill in Wensleydale, which 

is now a net producer of electricity. Conservation skills 
have long been identified as being at risk of loss and the 

HLF has supported training schemes such as the Mid-Hants 
Railway (which we visited recently) which is providing 

apprentice training on heavy mechanical engineering as 

applied to steam locomotives and railway coaches. 

Robert Carr writes on the Dounreay Sphere in Caithness 
and notes that the 200 feet diameter, and one inch thick, 

steel sphere which housed a fast neutron reactor, and which 
became critical in 1959 supplying power to the National 

Grid from 1963 to 1977, is unlikely to become fully decon-
taminated until at least 2020, and probably not until 

2030.The ultimate fate of the sphere largely depends on 

government attitudes to nuclear power generation. 

There is an update on recent AIA Restoration Fund grants, 
made possible by an anonymous donor. Two projects which 

have been approved for funding are temporarily on hold. 
The work on Box Boat 337 at the National Waterways Mu-

seum at Ellesmere Port has been held up pending the sourc-
ing of suitable timber, but this has now been delivered to 

site and work should start soon. Funding has also been 
agreed for work on the 1841 Petrie Beam Engine in the 

Ellenroad Steam Museum. The engine was originally in-
stalled in Whitelees Mill, Littleborough, and when the mill 

closed in 1957 was moved back to the site of the Petrie 
factory in Rochdale. When this was redeveloped in 1992 

the engine was moved to its present home in the museum. It 
will be necessary to completely dismantle the engine as 

there are problems with the alignment. Two other projects 
approved for aid in principle are for the re-erection of the 

Wells Firework factory at Amberley Museum; and for work 
at the Hoylandswaine Nail Forge near Barnsley. Meanwhile 

the Fourdrinier paper making machine at the Frogmore Mill 
at Apsley in Hertfordshire, the restoration of which was 

funded earlier, is now in full working production. As well 

as being an attraction for visitors, it is producing paper for 
the Paper Trailôs use and to local schools, who in turn pro-

vide waste paper for re-cycling. The machine was built in 
1902 and was commissioned by the Corporation of Man-

chester and was installed in what is now UMIST. It was the 
worldôs first specialist research and development paper-

making machine. It was given to the Paper Trail in 2003 
and installed at Frogmore Mill, where the worldôs first 

Fourdrinier machine was installed in 1803, developed and 

operated.  

John Price from Farnham in a letter makes a plea to consid-
er power stations. He is irritated by constant press reports 

of the óTurbine Hallô of the Tate Modern Gallery or the sad 
state of the remains of Battersea power station. He asks óare 

there any complete power stations available for the public 
to inspect and marvel?ô A óretiredô power station would 

provide a superb example of the work of designers, electri-
cal, mechanical and civil engineers etc. Surely every school 

child should experience at least one visit. He aso makes a 
case for using one or more stations to store post-excavation 

archaeological finds. He suggests forming a charity to lob-
by for the retention of a selection for use as technological 

educational centres. We have thousands of other heritage 
structures, why not preserve examples of what survives of 

twentieth century power generation practice, he asks. 

Robert Carr, once again reports on south of England mat-

ters of interest. This time on the return of SS Robin to a 
berth on the north side of Royal Albert Dock in London. 

Present plans are for the steam coaster to stay on its pon-
toon in Victoria Dock while further fitting out takes place, 

including the conversion of the pontoon into a display gal-
lery and educational facilities. Robert also reports on 

Woodstock railway station near Blenheim Palace. It was the 
local intention to retain the building as part of a housing 

development but a recent visit found no station and two 
sizeable executive homes ! With changes in planning legis-

lation proposed could this be a presage of things to come? 
A record fine of Ã80,000 plus Ã42,500 costs has been 

awarded for the unauthorised demolition of a listed Victori-

an house in the Twickenham Conservation Area. 

Part of the 2 feet gauge Kempton Park Waterworks railway, 
dismantled in 1947, is being restored by the Metropolitan 

Water Board Railway Society in conjunction with Kempton 
Great Engines Trust; while the Kew Bridge Engines Trust 

has been awarded a grant of Ã127,600 by the Heritage Lot-
tery Fund to help pay for the work in bidding for a grant of 

Ã1.8 million. This together with funding already agreed 
from Thames Water Utilities Ltd. would enable the Trust to 

proceed with the detailed planning phase of the proposed 
development of the museum. It is intended to give greater 

emphasis to water supply placing the engines in context. 
The plan would entail closing the museum for five months 

in early 2013 with a grand reopening in June.  

Developments at Kings Cross are described by Robert, 

including an extension opened in August of an additional 
queuing area in the southwest corner. To the north work on 

the former goods yard site is progressing where the new 
University of Arts London is combining art schools from 

central London in new buildings. Parts of the 1851 granary 
have been retained in the new structure. The former 50 

years old Western Central District Post Office sorting cen-
tre survives in the New Oxford Street, High Holborn area. 

It has been used by the British Museum and then more re-
cently as a centre for fashion and arts activities, but is now 

empty and becoming vandalised. It is likely that the build-
ing will be demolished; a similar fate awaits the Fleet 

Building in Farringdon Street. This was completed in 1960 
and features murals by Dorothy Annan depicting some of 

the then new and exciting telecommunications which took 
place in the building. These included the new cordless in-

ternational telex switch board which until 1970 was the 
only such exchange in the country. The building also 

housed a museum of telecom equipment later transferred to 

the British Telecom Museum and later still to Connected 

Earth.     ά 

Industrial Archaeology News No. 159 Winter 2011 report by Gordon Knowles 




